

NEWRY AND MOURNE DISTRICT COUNCIL

COMHAIRLE AN IÚIR AGUS MHÚRN

Minutes of Monthly Meeting of the Council held on Monday 1 October 2007 at 7.00pm in the Boardroom, District Council Offices, Monaghan Row, Newry.

In the Chair Councillor M Cole

In Attendance Councillor C Burns
Councillor W Burns
Councillor M Carr
Councillor C Casey
Councillor M Cole
Councillor M Connolly
Councillor B Curran
Councillor G Donnelly
Councillor J Feehan
Councillor I Hanna
Councillor T Hearty
Councillor D Kennedy
Councillor T Murphy
Councillor M Mathers
Councillor J McArdle
Councillor J McCreesh
Councillor PJ McDonald
Councillor P McGinn
Councillor K McKevitt
Councillor M Murphy
Councillor J O'Hare
Councillor G Oliver
Councillor M Ruane
Councillor G Stokes
Councillor A Williamson

Officials in Attendance Mr T McCall, Clerk and Chief Executive
Mr E Curtis, Director of Administration
Mr R Dowey, Director of Finance
Mr G McGivern, Director of District Development
Mrs R Mackin, Assistant Director of Administration (Equality)
Mrs E McParland, Assistant Director of Administration (General Services)
Ms L Bazilevich, Equality Unit
Mrs C McAteer, Committee Administrator

Apologies Councillor H Reilly

M/280/2007:- MINUTES

On the proposal of Councillor Hanna seconded by Councillor O'Hare, Minutes of Monthly Meeting of the Council held on Monday 3 September 2007 were adopted as a true and accurate record, same having been circulated.

**M/281/2007:- CONGRATULATIONS
(REF: M/23)**

Councillor Donnelly and Councillor Hearty congratulated Crossmaglen Rangers Senior Team on winning their 12th successive Armagh Senior Championship Title.

It was agreed to send a letter of congratulations to the Club.

Mayor Cole said that he would also be organising a photo call in Crossmaglen with the Team and Club Manager and Slieve Gullion Councillors to acknowledge their great achievement.

Councillor McCreesh and Councillor O'Hare also asked to be associated with the congratulations to Crossmaglen Rangers.

Councillor O'Hare said she would like to extend her best wishes to the Mayobridge Senior Football Team and the Longstone Football Team who would be competing in the Club Championship in the newly extended Pairc Esler in Newry on Sunday.

Councillor McGinn congratulated the Down GAA on the fantastic work they had carried out to Pairc Esler in Newry.

Councillor Cole said he would also like to extend his best wishes to both Teams on Sunday.

Councillor Curran congratulated the Down GAA Management on the fantastic job they had done with limited resources at Park Esler and asked if the Council would be working in partnership with the Club on certain projects.

Mr T McCall, Chief Executive said the Council were in the process of completing a business case in relation to this matter which should be presented to the Council in October.

At the request of Councillor McGinn, it was agreed to send a letter of best wishes to Simon Best, Member of Irish Rugby Squad who had taken ill in Bordeaux, France.

FINANCE MATTERS

**M/282/2007:- FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING – THURSDAY 13
SEPTEMBER 2007
(REF: F/1/1)**

Read: Report of Finance Committee Meeting held on Thursday 13 September 2007 (copy circulated).

On the proposal of Councillor Williamson, seconded by Councillor Feehan, it was agreed to approve the above report and recommendations.

M/283/2007:- MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS – 31 AUGUST 2007
(REF: F/1)

Read: Management accounts for period end 31 August 2007 (copy circulated).

It was agreed to mark the above accounts noted.

CONFERENCES/SEMINARS

M/284/2007:- FOURTH ALL-IRELAND HEALTH PROMOTING
HOSPITALS CONFERENCE 2007

Read: Correspondence dated 24 September 2007 from the Health Promotion Agency for Northern Ireland giving details of the Fourth All-Ireland Health Promoting Hospitals Conference 2007 to be held from 23 to 24 October 2007 in the Armagh City Hotel at a cost of £166 including conference dinner.

It was unanimously agreed to appoint Councillor McArdle and Councillor M Murphy to attend the above conference.

M/285/2007:- MORAVIN HERITAGE NETWORK CONFERENCE
(REF: M/53)

Read: Letter dated 21 September 2007 from Ballymena Borough Council advising that the Fourth International Conference of the Morvain Heritage Network was taking place between 6-10 October 2007 in the Galgorm Resort and Spa and that it may be of interest to some Council Officials as it gave an insight into World Heritage Sites, their status and the nomination process. The cost of the Conference was £100 including all meals and official Conference transportation.

Mr McCall advised that Mr McGivern, Director had not recommended that anyone attend this conference and it was agreed to take no action.

M/286/2007:- INFORMATION EVENING – NEWRY RAINBOW CLUB
(REF: M/53)

Read: Letter dated 25 September 2007 from Newry Rainbow Club advising they were hosting an information evening concerning Mental Health and Wellbeing with an emphasis on suicide awareness and prevention within the gay, lesbian, bisexual and transgender community on Thursday 11 October 2007 at 7.30pm in Newry Arts Centre and inviting representatives from the Council to attend.

It was unanimously agreed to appoint Mayor Cole and Councillor J O'Hare to attend this event.

NOTICES OF MOTION

M/287/2007:- NOTICE OF MOTION (REF: M/53)

The following Notice of Motion, listed on the Agenda in Councillor Curran's name, was withdrawn prior to consideration.

“This Council agrees that the recent band competition held in Newry has highlighted the need for this type of event to be held in a more suitable location”.

M/288/2007:- NOTICE OF MOTION (REF: M/53)

The following Notice of Motion came forward for consideration in the names of Councillors J Feehan, B Curran, D Kennedy and J Patterson:-

“This Council notes that the manufacturing base in Northern Ireland has been in steady decline. This Council further notes that an increase in industrial rates of over 25% will be a grave threat to our manufacturing base. Council resolves to write to the Minister for Finance and Personnel urging a freeze at 25%”.

Councillor Curran said he wished to withdraw his name from this Motion.

Councillor Feehan formally proposed the Motion and said that many people had worked very hard to bring unemployment down to a 3% level and industrial experts were warning that if there was a increase in industrial rates it could lead to job losses and the closure of businesses.

Councillor O'Hare formally seconded the Motion and said a number of elected representatives had attended a Meeting with manufacturing businesses in the Newry and Mourne area. The message from that Meeting was that it was imperative that this Council gets behind business people who had kept people in employment through very hard times and whose efforts have ensured that this area was kept alive.

Councillor McCreesh said that his understanding was that there was presently no rates on manufacturing industries.

Councillor Curran said that Sinn Fein were awaiting the outcome of a current Review into industrial rates, and until the outcome of that Review was known, Sinn Fein could not support the Motion.

Councillor Cole said a Meeting had been held with a local business company in Newry and out of that Meeting it had been proposed that this Motion be sent through to all Councils.

Councillor McGinn said the Manufacturing Rate Review being carried out by the Economic Research Institute must take into account the need to protect jobs and he said protest groups had kept this issue high on the agenda. He said it was essential that

the Northern Ireland Assembly must take into account any seismic increase in rates would have on jobs and they had to get the balance right.

Councillor McGinn said he was not prepared to put forward in writing any figure as to what industrial rates should be set at and said this was only one aspect of a much wider problem which required reform.

Councillor Casey said in his view it had not yet been established that there would be manufacturing rates set and the Council's position should be that the current position of no rating for manufacturing should be retained.

Councillor Feehan said all parties had attended the local business Meeting and all parties had agreed with the Motion.

Following further discussion, the Motion was put to a vote and it was noted that Councillor Curran's name had been withdrawn from the Motion.

The voting was as follows:

For	11
Against	Nil
Abstentions	12

The Motion was declared carried.

M/233/2007:- TENDER REPORT
A. SUPPLY AND DELIVERY OF 2 No. 26 TONNE REFUSE COLLECTION VEHICLES
B. SUPPLY AND DELIVERY OF 1 No. 7.5 TONNE GVW REFUSE COLLECTION VEHICLE

Read: Tender Evaluation Report for the supply and delivery of 1 no. 7.5 tonne GVW refuse collection vehicle with a suitable bin lifting device.

The Report recommended acceptance of the lowest tender in the sum of £63,861 plus VAT plus extra road tax at £220 from Brendan McIlvenna, BMI Trailers Ltd, Dungannon for the supply and delivery of an Iveco 75E16 7.5 Tonne refuse collection vehicle.

On the proposal of Councillor O'Hare, seconded by Councillor McKevitt it was agreed to approve acceptance of the above tender.

Read: Tender Evaluation Report for the supply and delivery of 2 No. 26 tonne refuse collection vehicles with high level automatic bin lifts.

The report recommended that on the basis of evaluations carried out that the Tender be awarded to Manvik to supply 2 No. vehicles i.e. 2 No. 26 tonne Dennis Elite 2, Pheonix Body with Terberg binlift at a cost of £109,800 each plus road tax of £700.

On the proposal of Councillor O'Hare seconded by Councillor McKevitt it was agreed to approve acceptance of the above tender.

Councillor Cole said he would like to take this opportunity to thank Mr J McCorry, Director of Technical and Leisure Services for donating a TV to be used to raise money at a raffle at the recent Children's Gala Ball.

ROADS/WATER/NIE MATTERS

**M/289/2007:- ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR IN THE VICINITY OF MOURNE HOSPITAL
(REF: SB/16 G/13/19)**

Read: Report of Mourne Councillors Site Meeting held on Monday 10 September 2007 to discuss anti-social behaviour in the vicinity of Mourne Hospital (copy circulated).

On the proposal of Councillor W Burns, seconded by Councillor Cole, it was agreed to approve the above report and recommendations.

**M/290/2007:- CAR PARKING ISSUES IN NEWRY CITY
(REF: G/4/1)**

Read: Report of Newry Town Councillors Meeting held on Wednesday 12 September 2007 (copy circulated).

On the proposal of Councillor Casey, seconded by Councillor Stokes, it was agreed to approve the above report and recommendations.

**M/291/2007:- FLOODING AT CLAREMONT GARDENS,
WARRENPOINT
(G/4/1 & G/4/2)**

Read: Report of Crotlieve Councillors Site Meeting held on Wednesday 29 August 2007 to discuss flooding at Claremont Gardens, Warrenpoint (copy circulated).

On the proposal of Councillor M Murphy, seconded by Councillor Williamson, it was agreed to approve the above report and recommendations.

**M/292/2007:- POWER INTERRUPTIONS AT MILLTOWN
INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, WARRENPOINT
(G/9/1 & SB/2)**

Read: Report of Crotlieve Councillors Meeting with Representatives from NIE and BT held on Thursday 13 September 2007 to discuss power interruptions at Milltown Industrial Estate, Warrenpoint (copy circulated).

Councillor Ruane proposed and Councillor Carr seconded that the above report and recommendations be approved.

Councillor McKeivitt referred to recommendation No 3 i.e. that 3 bilingual “Welcome to Rostrevor” signs and 2 bilingual “Welcome to Ballyholland” signs be erected. She said she would like the signs in Ballyholland to read “Welcome to Ballyholland and District”.

It was agreed therefore that the 2 bilingual signs to be erected in Ballyholland should read “Welcome to Ballyholland and District”.

**M/293/2007:- REQUEST FOR ACCESS ROAD AT ROSTREVOR
MUNICIPAL CEMETRY
(REF: F/3/4 PH/14/1)**

Read: Report of Crotlieve Councillors Meeting held with Representatives from St Bronagh’s GAA Club on Thursday 27 September 2007 to consider a request from the Club for the Council to grant an access road along the boundary of the field adjacent to the Council’s Municipal Cemetery at Kilbroney Road, Rostrevor (copy circulated).

The report recommended the following:-

1. Council Officials liase with representatives from Roads Service in relation to the proposed access road through Council owned land on Kilbroney Road, Rostrevor i.e. the Municipal Cemetery Site, as a matter of urgency.
2. Council consider, in principle, to support the request from St Bronagh’s GAA Club, Rostrevor for a Right of Way across Council owned land at Kilbroney Road to access lands currently for sale for a proposed playing field development and to issue a letter of support to the Club to enable them to bid on this land. The Council’s support for the request of the Right of Way would be subject to valuation, with the Club to be responsible for all development costs and for obtaining all necessary statutory approvals. (copy circulated).

Read: Correspondence from Mr E McManus, Deputy Director of Technical and Leisure Services, referring to the Meeting held on Thursday 27 September 2007 and stating that he had contacted Roads Service who had advised him on a “Without Prejudice” basis that it was likely that Roads Services requirements in relation to visibility sight splays would be 4.5m by 90m and it was likely that Roads Service would require a footpath to extend from the last section of the footpath on the Kilbroney Road up to the frontage of the access road. Mr McManus said the maps submitted by St Bronagh’s Club showed the proposed access at the Rostrevor end of the Council’s land but it was unlikely that the minimum required sights splays in the Rostrevor direction could be provided without the Club reaching agreement with the land owner immediately adjacent. He said the frontage of the entire Council land was approximately 200m in length and it would therefore be possible to achieve the required sites if the proposed access was located approximately centrally on the Council’s frontage but this would effectively split the Council’s field in two (copy circulated).

Councillor M Murphy said this possibility was discussed at the Site Meeting and Councillors had agreed that if necessary the entrance could be moved to the middle of

the Council's boundary and that the access road could then keep to the right-hand boundary around the inside of the municipal cemetery.

On the proposal of Councillor Murphy, seconded by Councillor O'Hare it was agreed to approve the report of a Meeting held on Thursday 27 September 2007 and the recommendations.

**M/294/2007:- ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR AT SLIEVE GULLION FOREST PARK
(REF: F/3/64)**

Read: Report of Slieve Gullion Councillors Site Meeting held on Thursday 13 September 2007 to discuss problems with car racing at Slieve Gullion Forest Park (copy circulated).

On the proposal of Councillor C Burns seconded by Councillor McArdle, it was agreed to approve the above report and recommendations.

**M/295/2007:- FEWS MULTI-AGENCY MEETING
(REF: R/S108/5/1)**

Read: Report of Fews Councillors Multi-Agency Meeting held on Thursday 20 September 2007. (Copy circulated).

On the proposal of Councillor Feehan, seconded by Councillor Oliver it was agreed to approve the above report and recommendations.

CORPORATE/DEMOCRATIC/ADMINISTRATION SECTION

**M/296/2007:- ABANDONED SHOPPING TROLLEYS IN NEWRY CITY
(REF: SC/12)**

Read: Report of Meeting of Council Officials with Representatives from local supermarkets, Rivers Agency and PSNI held on Monday 24 September 2007 to discuss the issue of abandoned shopping trolleys in Newry City. (copy circulated).

On the proposal of Councillor Feehan, seconded by Councillor McArdle it was agreed to approve the above report and recommendations.

**M/297/2007:- VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS
(REF: F/3/75)**

Read: Letter dated 1 October 2007 from McShane and Company Solicitors responding to the Council's request for legal advice in relation to how the Council may deal with the allocation of the balance of voluntary contribution monies left over after the application of the voluntary contribution procedure.

They said it was within the Council's power to decide to whom it wishes to make voluntary contributions subject to a few limitations. They said the

Council must not act in a manner which is so unreasonable that no reasonable Council could have made the decision in question. They further stated that although the procedure adopted by the Council on this occasion was not the most reasonable procedure which might have been adopted, none the less, in their view the procedure adopted was not so unreasonable that no reasonable Council could adopt such a procedure (copy circulated).

On the proposal of Councillor Stokes, seconded by Councillor W Burns it was agreed to:

- (a) accept the legal advice from McShane & Company Solicitors in relation to this matter.
- (b) Confirm that in light of the legal advices received, the Council decision of 20/08/07 stands and is now to be actioned.

In response to Councillor Carr, Mr McCall confirmed the Council may rescind any resolution it passed in accordance with Standing Orders 10 or 20.

**M/298/2007:- STAFF AND POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING
- TUESDAY 22 MAY 2007
(REF: M/4/3)**

Read: Report of Staff and Policy Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 22 May 2007 (copy circulated).

Councillor M Murphy said he had requested at the Staff and Policy Meeting that his objection to the Council giving an office free of charge to the Honorary Consul for Poland should be recorded.

On the proposal of Councillor W Burns, seconded by Councillor Stokes it was agreed to approve the Report of the Staff and Policy Committee Meeting subject to the remarks made by Councillor M Murphy being recorded.

Councillor Stokes said that Lilia Bazilevich would be returning to Kirosvk in November 2007, after her year with the Council as an exchange student. It was agreed that the Mayor host a reception to officially mark this occasion.

Mr Curtis, Director of Administration said that the launch of the Challenge of Change Project would be held on Wednesday 3 October 2007 at 10.30am in the Arts Centre and he asked that as many Councillors as possible attend.

It was agreed that the Official launch take place at 11am rather than 10.30am to allow as many Councillors to attend as possible.

**M/299/2007:- SEALING DOCUMENTS
(REF: M/65)**

Councillor McKevitt proposed and Councillor Donnelly seconded that the following document be signed and sealed by the Chief Executive on behalf of the Council:-

1. NIHE and Newry and Mourne District Council – Surrender of Play Area at Derramore Road, Bessbrook.
2. License of café at Bagenal's Castle - Newry and Mourne District Council to Neil Bradley and Sarah Meaney
3. Lease of land at Milltown – Newry and Mourne District Council to Warrenpoint Town Football Club: Lease and Counterpart

M/300/2007:- SHELTERED HOUSING IN BESSBROOK
(REF: SB/5)

Read: Report of Fewes Area Councillors Meeting held on Thursday 27 September 2007 to discuss the possibility of providing a Sheltered Housing Scheme as part of the Old Mill Development Project in Bessbrook (copy circulated).

On the proposal of Councillor Kennedy, seconded by Councillor Feehan it was agreed to approve the above report and recommendations subject to recommendation No. 1 being changed to read as follows:

1. A Preliminary Meeting be held between Fewes Area Councillors and the developer of the Old Mill Project in Bessbrook; Followed by a follow-up meeting involving Fewes Councillors, the Old Mill Project Developer, NIHE, NI Confederation of Housing Associations and the Southern Health and Social Care Trust to establish the situation in relation to the provision of a Sheltered Housing Project in the development proposals for the Old Mill.

CHAIRMAN'S BUSINESS

M/301/2007:- PROVISION OF AMBULANCE COVER IN THE SOUTH
ARMAGH AREA
(REF: G/13/3)

Councillor T Murphy referred to correspondence received from the NI Ambulance Service in relation to concerns raised by the Council regarding special arrangements between the NI Fire Service and the NI Ambulance Service.

On the proposal of Councillor T Murphy, seconded by Councillor T Hearty it was agreed to write to the Chief Executive of NI Ambulance Service advising the Council was concerned that at a public Meeting held on Tuesday 5 December 2006 in Crossmaglen and in subsequent correspondence received from NIAS, assurances were given that special arrangements would be put in place in Armagh in response to motor vehicle accidents, given that it was not possible for ambulances to meet the 8 minute response time for emergency calls.

The Council to point out to the Chief Executive of NIAS that he had said an automated paging system would be introduced as a supplementary measure to create a greater degree of assurance and also the possibility of a first responder scheme in South Armagh would be looked into.

It was further agreed to advise the Chief Executive of NIAS that in the opinion of the Council, no special arrangements have been put in place specific to South Armagh,

which are not in place throughout the whole of Northern Ireland and the Council are now requesting an urgent Meeting with him to discuss issues relating to the provision of ambulance cover in the South Armagh area and the outstanding issues that have yet to be addressed.

**M/302/2007:- PUBLIC FISHING GROUND – BELFAST LOUGH
(REF: G/1)**

On the proposal of Councillor Connolly seconded by Councillor Williamson it was agreed to write to the Department of Agriculture and Rural Development regarding an application by a Dutch Company to designate the fishing grounds at Belfast Lough as private fishing grounds rather than public as at present.

It was agreed to advise the Department that the Council was concerned that if this application was successful it would have an adverse impact on fishermen in our District, particularly in the Kilkeel area, where up to 15 fishermen could be affected and the Council's opposition to this proposal be recorded.

**M/303/2007:- CONGRATULATIONS
(REF: M/23)**

At the request of Councillor Hearty it was agreed to send a letter of congratulations to the Parish Priest in Glasdrumman and the Curate on the organisation of a series of events to mark the 75th Anniversary of the building of the Chapel at Glasdrumman and the beautiful mass in St. Brigid's at which Bishop Clifford officiated.

Councillor Donnelly asked to be associated with these remarks.

**M/304/2007:- COOKERY DEMONSTRATION
– NEWRY SPORTS CENTRE
- WEDNESDAY 3 OCTOBER 2007**

On the proposal of Councillor Stokes seconded by Councillor McKeivitt it was agreed the Council make a contribution towards the hire cost of Newry Sports Centre for a Cookery Demonstration to be held on Wednesday 3 October 2007, which was being organised to raise funds for a nominated charity.

**M/305/2007:- SYMPATHY
(REF: M/21)**

At the request of Councillor McGinn it was agreed to send a letter of sympathy to Wicklow Fire Authority on the tragic death of the 2 firefighters which had occurred as they attempted to put out a warehouse fire in Bray.

Councillor McGinn said that a lot of potential harm and injury could result from the misuse of fire and he appealed to people to be careful, particularly in the run up to Halloween.

**M/306/2007:- PURCHASE OF BOOKS – JOTTINGS OF A GENTLEMAN
(REF: M/1)**

On the proposal of Councillor Kennedy seconded by Councillor Hanna it was agreed to purchase books up to a value of £200 entitled “Jottings of a Gentleman” as this book had a local historical connection and that the books be used as corporate presentation gifts.

At the request of Councillor Curran it was agreed to arrange for a display of the books currently available for distribution as corporate presentation gifts, to be made available prior to a Council Meeting so that Councillors know what books are available.

At the request of Councillor McGinn it was agreed the Council contact ROSA and purchase a number of books entitled “Gap of the North” at a reduced rate for use as presentation gifts.

**M/307/2007:- ANTI SOCIAL INCIDENT IN WARRENPOINT
(REF: M/1)**

Councillor Ruane condemned an incident which took place in Warrenpoint on Friday 28 September 2007 when a lady answered her door in the early hours of the morning, thinking it was her son returning home, only to be confronted by a person with a hooded top who demanded her car keys and then drove off in the ladies car.

Councillor Ruane appealed to people to be careful when opening doors, particularly late at night and if they did not know the person.

Councillor O’Hare and McKeivitt also condemned this incident

**M/308/2007:- SIGNAGE FOR BAGENAL’S CASTLE IN NEWRY CITY CENTRE
(REF: SB/13/26)**

At the request of Councillor McKeivitt it was agreed Mr G McGivern Director ensure that the signage for Bagenal’s Castle at John Mitchell Place be changed to point in the right direction.

**M/309/2007:- GAPS IN WALL OF DAISY HILL NURSERY SITE
(REF: R/S 300)**

At the request of Councillor McArdle it was agreed an inspection be carried out of the wall at the Daisy Hill Nursery Site, beside the old firehouse factory, as there were two gaps in the wall which had occurred as a result of trees growing through them.

M/310/2007:- CONGRATULATIONS
(REF: M/23)

At the request of Councillor McArdle it was agreed to send a letter of congratulations to Fr Fearon Prior of the 'Dominican Community' Newry, on the occasion of the Dominican Community celebrating 800 years of the founding of the Order

There being no further business the Meeting ended at 8.10pm.

For consideration at the Monthly Meeting of the Council to be held on Monday 5 November 2007.

Signed:

Mayor

Chief Executive

COMHAIRLE AN IÚIR AGUS MHÚRN

NEWRY AND MOURNE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PURPOSE OF MEETING: **Monthly Meeting of the Council**

VENUE: **Boardroom, Monaghan Row, Newry**

DATE: **1 October 2007**

Name of Councillor		Time of Arrival	Time of Leaving	Meeting Duration	Travel Time To/From Home	Mileage	Same Day Meeting	Total Time	Amount Payable
Burns C	58	7.00	8.10						
Burns W J	2	7.00	8.10						
Carr M	52	7.00	8.10						
Casey C	54	7.00	8.10						
Cole M J	48	7.00	8.10						
Connolly M		7.00	8.10						
Curran B	6	7.00	8.10						
Donnelly G		7.00	8.10						
Feehan J W	49	7.00	8.10						
Feely F	8								
Flynn A									
Hanna I B	10	7.00	8.10						
Hearty T	59	7.00	8.10						
Kennedy D	12	7.20	8.10						
Mathers M		7.00	8.10						
McArdle J	55	7.00	8.10						
McCreesh J P	44	7.00	8.10						
McDonald PJ	35	7.00	8.10						
McGinn P	56	7.00	8.10						
McKevitt K		7.00	8.10						
Murphy M	47	7.00	8.10						
Murphy T		7.00	8.10						
Mussen C									
O'Hare J	37	7.00	8.10						
Oliver G		7.00	8.10						
Patterson J	38								
Reilly H	26								
Ruane M	53	7.00	8.10						
Stokes G		7.00	8.10						
Williamson A V	39	7.00	8.10						

Officials in attendance:

Time of Arrival:

Time of Leaving:

**T McCall E Curtis
L Bazilevich C McAteer**

G McGivern

R Dowey

R Mackin

Signed: *Colette McAteer*

Date: *30 October 2007*